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2023 31 29,974,298 4,569,282 98.28 14,982
2024 31 28,123,300 4,287,116 98.68 15,043
2023 29,685,650 4,525,280 97.33 14,837
29,502,650 4,497,384 96.73 14,746
10 29,469,100 4,492,270 96.62 14,729
11 29,432,208 4,486,646 96.50 14,710
12 29,620,413 4,515,336 97.12 14,805
2024 27,642,320 4,213,795 96.99 14,785
27,606,507 4,208,336 96.86 14,765
28,123,300 4,287,116 98.68 15,043
28,075,815 4,279,877 98.51 15,017
28,034,770 4,273,620 98.37 14,996
28,122,073 4,286,929 98.67 15,041
28,081,761 4,280,784 98.53 15,020
2022 31 2023 -1
2023 2024 0.4

100x
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2024 3 31
3 31 3 31
2024 2023
USD USD
9 3,742,346 570,483 4,062,289 619,255
SPV
26,100,000
2023 26,448,983 4,031,883 25,968,169 3,958,588
26,100,000 7,8
14,755 2,249 14,628 2,230
30,206,084 4,604,615 30,045,086 4,580,073
1,942,400 296,099 - -
11 237,016 36,131 250,495 38,185
2,179,416 332,230 250,495 38,185
28,026,668 4,272,385 29,794,501 4,541,887
28,026,668 4,272,385 29,794,591 4,541,887
10 285,000 43,445 305,000 46,494
NA1V USD 98.3392 14,991 USD 97.6872 14,891

2024 7 25
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2024 3 31
2024 2023
USsD usD

12 480,814 73295  (131,831)  (20,096)
175,406 26,739 88,464 13,485
656,220 100,034 (43,367) (6,611)
11,13 235,059 35,832 201,470 30,712
11,13 58,762 8,958 50,429 7,687
11,13 44,074 6,719 37,776 5,759
11,13 44,074 6,719 37,776 5,759
11,13 2,941 448 2457 375
11,13 26,565 4,050 22,629 3,450
11,13 18,640 2841 16,803 2561
27,604 4,208 23,500 3,582
) ] 249,000 37,958
24,024 3,662 20,202 3,080
481,743 73,437 662,042 100,922
174,477 26597  (705,400)  (107,533)
174,477 26597  (705409)  (107,533)

2022 5 31 2023 3 31
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2024 3 31
2024 2023
USD USD
29,794,591 4,541,887 - -
- - 30,500,000 4,649,420
(1,942,400) (296,099) - -
174,477 26,597 (705,400) (107,533)

28,026,668 4,272,385 29,794,591 4,541,887

2022 5 31 2023 3 31
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2024 3 31
2024 2023

USD UsD
174,477 26,597 (705,409) (107,533)
- - (26,100,000)  (3,978,684)
(480,814) (73,295) 131,831 20,096
(127) (19) (14,628) (2,230)
(13,479) (2,055) 250,495 38,185
(319,943) (48,772)  (26,437,711)  (4,030,165)
- - 30,500,000 4,649,420
- - 30,500,000 4,649,420
(319,943) (48,772) 4,062,289 619,255
4,062,289 619,255 - -
3,742,346 570,483 4,062,289 619,255
174,279 26,567 74,836 11,408

2022 5 31 2023 3 31
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UBS [l
Il 2013 12 2
2022 4 19
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Grand Cayman KY1-9005 Cayman Islands

2022 5 31
SPV
VAULT SPV
SPV SPV (i)
SPV
wil
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SPV
(i) (i)
WIL GPIII, LP.
GP
2022 2 14 2
LPA WiL
Management I11,LLC
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2023 3 19 UBS AG
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2024 3 31
1.
2023 6 12 UuBS AG
AG AG
AG UBS AG
UBSAG AG
UBSAG
AG

AG

UBS AG UBS
AG AG

2024 5 31
2024 2 28

i UBS i
2024 3 1
2024 2 1 UBS
2024 3 31 8
SPV
94.37 2023 87.16
() SPv

(i1)

NAV
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1.
NAV SPV
SPV
2
IASB
IFRS IASB
USD
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27
2012
IFRS
IFRS
7 8
3.
FVTPL

SPV
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2023 4 1 IAS 1 IFRS

5.
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2024 3 31
6.
iii
GBP
CEl PE Fund GP
CEl SAFE Keep it
Simple Securities  KISS
3
iv
v
ECL
12 ECL

ECL
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2024 3 31
6.
Vv
ECL
30
90
ECL
ECL 12 ECL ECL 12
12
ECL ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL

90
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6.
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12
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2024 3 31
6.
2013 12 2 50
SPV
SPv
LPA
SPV PE
SPv
SPv
2024 3 31 10,000,000 2023 3 31

15,000,000 2023 3 31
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2024 3 31

Silicon Valley
2023 3 31 Silicon

2024 3 31
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|AS32
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2024 3 31
NAV
1
1 NAV
NAV 10
o 1
o 2
o 3
1 2 3
2024 usD usD usD usbD
FVTPL
SPv
- - 26,448,983 26,448,983
- - 26,448,983 26,448,983
2023
FVTPL
SPv
- - 25,968,169 25,968,169

- - 25,968,169 25,968,169
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2024 3 31
7.
3 2024
3 31 2023 3 31
2024
USD26,448,983 N/A
2023
USD25,968,169 N/A
Spv 6 (iii) 4
2024 3 31 2023 3 31 3
3
3 2023
FVTPL USD usD
25,968,169 -
- 26,100,000
480,814 (131,831)
26,448,983 25,968,169

NAV NAV
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2024 3 31
GP
GP
1
1
NAV
NAV
5
2023 3 31 1,298,408
2024 4 31 2023 3 31
2024 2023
94.37% 87.16%
94.37% 87.16%
SPv

5 2024 3 31
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2024 3 31
8.
2024 2023
VAULT Cayman Il Investments O 2032 6 7 94.37% 87.16%
94.37% 87.16%
SPV
1 37,423

2023 3 31 40,623 1
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2024 3 31
8.
2024 3 31 2023 3 31
2024 usb USD UusD
3,742,346 - 3,742,346
SPV - 26,448,983 26,448,983
- 14,755 14,755
3,742,346 26,463,738 30,206,084
- 1,942,400 1,942,400
- 237,016 237,016
- 2,179,416 2,179,416
3,742,346
2023
4,062,289 - 4,062,289
SPV - 25,968,169 25,968,169
- 14,628 14,628
4,062,289 25,982,797 30,045,086
- 250,495 250,495
- 250,495 250,495

4,062,289
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2024 3 31 2023 3 31
1 1

2024 USD USD USD
- 3,742,346 3,742,346
SPV 26,448,983 - 26,448,983
- 14,755 14,755
26,448,983 3,757,101 30,206,084
- 1,942,400 1,942,400
- 237,016 237,016
. 2,179,416 2,179,416

2023
- 4,062,289 4,062,289
SPV 25,968,169 - 25,968,169
; 14,628 14,628
25,968,169 4,076,917 30,045,086
- 250,495 250,495
. 250,495 250,495
2024 3 31

2023

31
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2024 2023

3,742,346 4,062,289

3,742,346 4,062,289
2024 2023

305,000 -

- 305,000

(20,000 -

285,000 305,000
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2024 2023
usb usb
76,689 80,177
18,832 20,044
14,379 15,033
14,379 15,033
942 1,002
16,708 12,016
9,200 9,200
24,104 23,500
61,783 74,490
237,016 250,495

NAV 0.8
NAV 0.20
NAV
0.15
NAV 0.15

10,000
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NAV
0.01
NAV 0.07
3,750
5,000 1 CIMA 1,000
NAV 0.025
1,500
SPV
SPv
12,
2024 2023
usD usD
FVTPL 480,814 (131,831)

480,814 (131,831)
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14.
1 NAV
1
0.005
2024 3 31 2022 5 31 2023 3 31
2024 3 31 2023 3 31
15. NAV NAV
IFRS 179,707 2023
249,000
NAV
3
2024 2023
USD USD
NAV 28,026,668 29,794,591
179,707 249,000
(83,075) (69,293)
NAV NAV 28,123,300 20,974,298
16.
2024 3 31

2024 7 25
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Statement of Financial Position

Asat 31 March 2024
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Notes USD USsD
Assets
Cash 9 3,742,346 4,062,289
Investment in SPV (Cost:
USD26,100,000) (2023: Cost: 26,448,983 25,968,169
USD26,100,000) 7,8
Receivables 14,755 14,628
Total Assets 30,206,084 30,045,086
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed 1,942,400 -
Fees payables 11 237,016 250,495
Total Liabilities 2,179,416 250,495
Equity (being Net assets attributable to
the Unitholder) 28,026,668 29,794,591
Representing:
USD Units
Equity USD28,026,668 USD29,794,591
Number of units outstanding 10 285,000.00 305,000.00
Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per unit USD98.3392 USD97.6872

Approved on behalf of the Trustee on 25 July 2024.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023
Notes USsD USD
Net gain/ (loss) on investments 12 480,814 (131,831)
Interest income 175,406 88,464
Total investment gain / (10ss) 656,220 (43,367)
Distribution fees 11,13 235,059 201,470
Manager Support Service Provider 11,13 58,762 50,429
Investment Manager fees 11,13 44,074 37,776
Fee Agent fees 11,13 44,074 37,776
Agent Member Company fees 11,13 2,941 2,457
Administration fees 11,13 26,565 22,629
Custody fees 11,13 18,640 16,803
Audit fees 27,604 23,500
Establishment costs - 249,000
Other fees and expenses 24,024 20,202
Total operating expenses 481,743 662,042
Operating gain/ (loss) 174,477 (705,409)
Total gain/ (loss) (being decrease in Net Assets
attributable to the Unitholder from operations) 174,477 (705,409)

* For the period from 31 May 2022 (commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023*

usD usD
Equity at beginning of year / period 29,794,591 -
Equity units issued - 30,500,000
Equity units redeemed (1,942,400) -
Total gain/ (loss) (being decrease in Net Assets attributable
to the Unitholder from operations) 174,477 (705,409)
Equity at end of year / period 28,026,668 29,794,591

* For the period from 31 May 2022 (commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2024
2024 2023
usD usbD
Operating activities
Total gain/ (loss) (being decrease in Net Assets attributable to
the Unitholders from operations) 174,477 (705,409)
Purchase of investment in SPV - (26,100,000)
Adjustment for items not involving cash
Movement in unrealised gain / (loss) on investments (480,814) 131,831
Net change in non-cash operating balances
Increase in receivables (227) (14,628)
(Decrease) / increase in fees payables (13,479) 250,495
Net cash used in operating activities (319,943) (26,437,711)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity units - 30,500,000
Net cash provided by financing activities - 30,500,000
Net change in cash (319,943) 4,062,289
Cash at beginning of year / period 4,062,289 -
Cash a end of year / period 3,742,346 4,062,289
Supplementary information:
Interest received 174,279 74,836

* For the period from 31 May 2022 (commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notesto the financia statements
31 March 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa WiL Ventures I11, LP. Fund (the *Series Trust”) has been created and established pursuant
to the Master Trust Deed (the “Master Trust Deed’) for UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) IlI
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) IIl) (the “Master Trust”) dated 2 December
2013, as amended and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 19 April 2022 (the “Supplement Trust
Deed” and together with the Master Trust Deed). The address of its registered office is One Nexus
Way, CamanaBay, Grand Cayman KY 1-9005, Cayman Islands.

The Series Trust commenced trading on 31 May 2022 issuing USD Units.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek growth of trust assets, in USD terms,
by investing, in principle, in Japanese and US private equities (including private companies of
non-Japanese and non- US companies doing business in Japan and the United States of
America).

The Series Trust’s exposure to the Japanese and US private equities will be obtained indirectly
through acquiring notes (the “SPV Notes’) issued by VAULT Cayman Il Investments (the
“SPV Issuer”), a Cayman domiciled exempted company established for the purposes of issuing
separate series of notes (including the SPV Notes). The SPV Notes will provide exposure to (i)
WiL Ventures Ill, LP., Delaware limited partnership (the “PE Fund”) through the SPV Issuer’
S interest as a limited partner of the PE Fund and (ii) a cash portion available to fund coupons
payable to the Series Trust (if any), any capital calls from the PE Fund, or any potential
clawback, taxes, indemnity expenses and similar clams against the SPV Issuer (provided such
cash portion may be invested into short-term financia instruments, money market funds or
other liquid instruments) ((i) and (ii) together the “Private Equity Portion”).

The PE Fund governed by its second amended and restated limited partnership agreement dated 14
February 2022 (the “PE Fund LPA™), by amongst others WIL GP IlI, LP., a Delaware limited
partnership, as the genera partner (i.e. investment manager) (the “PE Fund GP’). The generd
partner of the PE Fund GP, WiL Management Ill, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is
primarily responsible for the investment activities of the PE Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold short-term financial instruments (including USD cash), (the “Cash
Portion”) to allow partial liquidity of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager has day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust's portfolio comprising the SPV Notes (which
provide exposure to the Private Equity Portion) and the Cash Portion (the “ Subadvised Portfolio”).

On 19 March 2023, UBS Group AG agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG following

intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).
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Notesto the financia statements
31 March 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Daiwa WiL Ventures I11, LP. Fund (the *Series Trust”) has been created and established pursuant
to the Master Trust Deed (the “Master Trust Deed’) for UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il1I
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) IIl) (the “Master Trust”) dated 2 December
2013, as amended and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 19 April 2022 (the “Supplement Trust
Deed” and together with the Master Trust Deed). The address of its registered office is One Nexus
Way, CamanaBay, Grand Cayman KYY 1-9005, Cayman Islands.

The Series Trust commenced trading on 31 May 2022 issuing USD Units.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek growth of trust assets, in USD terms,
by investing, in principle, in Japanese and US private equities (including private companies of
non-Japanese and non- US companies doing business in Japan and the United States of
America).

The Series Trust's exposure to the Japanese and US private equities will be obtained indirectly
through acquiring notes (the “SPV Notes’) issued by VAULT Cayman Il Investments (the
“SPV lIssuer”), a Cayman domiciled exempted company established for the purposes of issuing
separate series of notes (including the SPV Notes). The SPV Notes will provide exposure to (i)
WiL Ventures Ill, LP., Delaware limited partnership (the “PE Fund”) through the SPV Issuer’
s interest as a limited partner of the PE Fund and (ii) a cash portion available to fund coupons
payable to the Series Trust (if any), any capital calls from the PE Fund, or any potential
clawback, taxes, indemnity expenses and similar claims against the SPV Issuer (provided such
cash portion may be invested into short-term financia instruments, money market funds or
other liquid instruments) ((i) and (ii) together the “Private Equity Portion”).

The PE Fund governed by its second amended and restated limited partnership agreement dated 14
February 2022 (the “PE Fund LPA™), by amongst others WIL GP IlI, LP., a Delaware limited
partnership, as the general partner (i.e. investment manager) (the “PE Fund GP’). The genera
partner of the PE Fund GP, WiL Management Ill, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is
primarily responsible for the investment activities of the PE Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold short-term financial instruments (including USD cash), (the “Cash
Portion”) to allow partial liquidity of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager has day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring
responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust's portfolio comprising the SPV Notes (which
provide exposure to the Private Equity Portion) and the Cash Portion (the “ Subadvised Portfolio”).

On 19 March 2023, UBS Group AG agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG following

intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As of 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG announced the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse
Group AG by way of statutory merger. Asaresult of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceased to
exist and Credit Suisse AG became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. One of the
key steps of the integration is the legal merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (the “Parent Bank
Merger”). The Parent Bank Merger is a statutory merger by absorption under Swiss law, whereby
UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cease to exist upon completion of
the merger. At this point intime, in principle, al assets, liabilities and contracts of Credit Suisse AG
and its branches will automatically transfer to UBS AG (and its branches as the case may be) by
operation of law (in other words by “universal succession”). Asaresult, UBS AG will automatically
take over al the rights and responsibilities from Credit Suisse AG. The Parent Bank Merger was
completed with effect from 31 May 2024.

The Manager and the Trustee understand that Credit Suisse International as Liquidity Intermediary
and will continue to conduct its operations in the ordinary course.

On 28 February 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill. The Master Trust Deed was
revised through a Deed of Amendment on March 1, 2024.

Following a Special resolution dated 1 February 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now
incorporated under the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

As of 31 March 2024, under the Liquidity Arrangement as defined in Note 8, the Series Trust holds
94.37% (2023: 87.16%) investment in SPV note with Credit Suisse International (the “Liquidity
Intermediary”) as Liquidity Intermediary.

Investment Guidelines

The Manager has appointed Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd (the “Investment
Manager”) with discretionary management power to manage and monitor the Subadvised
Portfolio. The Investment Manager will manage the Subadvised Portfolio in accordance with
the investment policy described in this section and the investment restrictions described below.

Investments may be made by the Investment Manager for the account of the Series Trust in
the following:

(i) The SPV Notesin respect of the Private Equity Portion; and
(if) Short-term financial instruments (including USD cash) in respect of the Cash Portion.
For the avoidance of doubt, overnight cash balances may be held in a sweep vehicle.

The Investment Manager may not take any short positions to implement investment decisions
or manage cashflows nor borrow money for the account of the Series Trust.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The Investment Manager may use derivatives only for the hedging purpose, provided that total
notional principal amount of derivatives held for the account of the Series Trust shall not
exceed the NAV of the Series Trust.

Investment Guidelines (continued)
The Investment Manager will generally manage the Subadvised Portfolio in accordance with
the following guidelines:

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the NAV in the SPV Notes, in
order to provide exposure to the Private Equity Portion.

The SPV Notes providing exposure to the Private Equity Portion are denominated in USD and
will not be hedged into other currencies. The Investment Manager will not invest in non-USD
denominated assets.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS’) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASB”), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the
IASB. Thefinancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“USD”).

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)
(2012) (the “amendments’). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee and Manager
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about
the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee and Manager in the application of IFRS that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next period are discussed in Notes 7 and 8.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Measurement basis
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Fair value
(“FVTPL")

Investment in SPV isincluded in this category.
4. CHANGES IN MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies. (Amendments to IAS1 and IFRS Accounting
Standard Practice Statement 2) from 1 April 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant” accounting policies.
The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users
need to understand other information in the financial statements.

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year beginning
1 April 2023

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 April 2023 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early
applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a
material effect on the Series Trust’s financial statements.

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust are asfollows:

Financial assets and financia liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Other financia assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they
are originated.

A financial asset or financia liability is measured initialy at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated asat FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI™).

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which afinancial asset isheld, the
Series Trust considers al of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:
the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. Thisincludes
whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of
any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets,
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed,;
how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models;

Held-to-collect business model: this comprises of cash, and receivables. These financial assets
are held to collect contractual cash flow.
Other business model: this comprises of the investment in SPV. These financial assets are

managed and their performance is evaluated, on afair value basis.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows,

- leverage features,

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assetsat FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in SPV isincluded in this category.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or |0ss on derecognition is aso recognised in profit or 10ss.

Cash and receivables are included in this category.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and |osses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability isclassified asat FVTPL if it isclassified as held for trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

As at the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no financial liabilitiesat FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost include payable for Equity Units redeemed and fees payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

“Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of aliability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-price,
because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The assets and liabilities of the Series Trust are valued on the last business day of each calendar
month or at such other times as determined by the Investment Manager and Trustee in their sole
discretion. The Fund's investment in SPV are measured at fair value, as determined by the
Investment Manager. Investment in SPV is categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurement (continued)

The PE Fund invested under SPV Note is valued, based on the annual audited financial statements
and the quarterly unaudited financial statements provided by the PE Fund, which may not align with
the relevant Valuation Day, and/or be published several months after the time of valuation.
Therefore, the Series Trust’s NAV  as of the Valuation Day may not represent its net asset value at
the time of publication. Thereis currently no established secondary market for the PE Fund in which
the Series Trust invests, and the valuation of the Series Trust’s equity interest is not based on the
value of the PE Fund's shares traded in the secondary market. The valuation price of the Series Trust
may fluctuate drastically depending on the performance trends of the invested companies in which
the PE Fund invest. The PE Fund is generally categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

PE Fund

The primary purpose of the PE Fund is to seek income and gains through the investment in
companies engaged primarily in the electronics, automative, airline, enterprise software, consumer,
financial, telecom, medical services, trading, internet, social and media industries in Japan and the
United States of America (U.S.).

Investments in the PE Fund consist of investments in privately held equity securities and convertible
equity instruments (CEI) for which market prices are not observable.

The fair value of private equity investments is value initially based upon transaction price and may
continue to be valued at cost for a period after acquisition, as this has been determined to be the best
indicator of fair value. The fair values of private equity instruments are determined by reference to
projected earnings multiples, the discounted cash flow method, public market or private transactions,
valuations for comparable companies and other measures which, in many cases, are unaudited at the
time received. Valuations may be derived by reference to observable valuation measures or
comparable companies or transactions (e.g. multiplying a key performance metric of the investee
company by a relevant valuation multiple observed in the range of comparable companies or
transactions), adjusted by the PE Fund GBP for differences between the investment and the
referenced comparable, and in some instances by reference to option pricing models or other similar
methods.

The fair value of CElsis estimated based on their net realisable value as determined by the PE Fund
GP &fter considering the terms of the agreement and conversion factors, CEls include various types
of instruments including Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE), Keep it Simple Securities
(KISS), Warrants and Convertible Equity Agreements.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financid liabilities (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurement (continued)

PE Fund(continued)

The above investments are categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and was based on
quantitative unobservable inputs not internally developed. Such items include financial instruments
for which the determination of fair value is based on prices from prior transactions or third party
pricing information without adjustment. Significant increases (decreases) in any of these inputs in
isolation would result in asignificantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting year during which the change has occurred.

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financia liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

(V) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLS’) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the asset) has not increased significantly sinceinitial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of afinancial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLSs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

108/203



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO000D0O000OO(ELS389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financid liabilities (continued)

(V) Impairment (continued)
The Series Trust considers afinancial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full, without recourse
by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the
counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECL s that result from al possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECL s are the portion of ECL s that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that afinancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
abreach of contract such as adefault or being more than 90 days past due; or
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLsin the Satement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of afinancial asset iswritten off when the Series Trust has no reasonable
expectations of recovering afinancial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financid liabilities (continued)

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises afinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in atransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of afinancial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Series Trust is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Statement
of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially al of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantialy all of the risks and rewards are retained,
then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets with retention of all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Thisis generally not the case with master netting agreements and the related assets
and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of Financial Position. As at 31 March 2024 or
2023, the Series Trust does not hold any financial assets or liabilities subject to master netting
arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the “Custodian™). The Custodian have, in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH”) as their sub-custodian (the “ Sub-Custodian™). Cash is ultimately
held at BBH as the Series Trust's banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities of 3 months
or lesswith BBH.
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net gain/ (loss) from financia instrumentsat FVTPL

Net gain/ (loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realised and the change in unrealised
gaing/losses on financial assets and liabilities at FVPTL. The realised gain / (loss) from financial
instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial
instrument at the beginning of the reporting year, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the
current reporting year, and the consideration received on disposal. The change in unrealised gain /
(loss) represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the
beginning of the year, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting year, and
its carrying amount at the end of the reporting year.

Interest income

Interest income, is recognised in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through
the expected life of the financia instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying
amount of the financia instrument on initial recognition. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Series Trust estimate future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financia
instrument, but not future credit losses.

Interest received or receivable, and interest paid or payable, are recognised in profit or loss as
interest income and interest expense, respectively.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains
or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from such
taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a result, no
provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may be subject to
foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains. The amount of tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to withholding taxes, if any.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange transactions

Items which are included in the Series Trust’s financial statements, are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”), which is
USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of investments, issue and repurchase
of equity units and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions. Realised and unrealised gains and losses
arising from trandation, if any, are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The SPV Notes
The Series Trust will invest in the SPV Notes in order to obtain exposure to the Private Equity
Portion.

The PE Fund features a subscription mechanism via capital call. Under the PE Fund LPA, the SPV
Issuer can be required to prefund its obligations to make capital calls by transferring the relevant
issuance proceeds of the SPV Notes to an account (the “Escrow Account”) established by, or on
behalf of the PE Fund. The administrator of the PE Fund has authority over such Escrow Account
and can effect the transfers of sums sitting in such account to the PE Fund to meet the SPV Issuer’'s
obligation to satisfy capital calls, as such capital calls are issued. As of 31 March 2024, an amount of
USD10,000,000 (2023: USD15,000,000) is held under escrow account at Morgan Stanley (2023:
Mizuho Bank).

Originally, the SPV Issuer was notified that the Escrow Account was opened at Silicon Valley Bank
as directed by the PE Fund. During the period ended 31 March 2023, the Escrow Account was
moved from Silicon Valey Bank to Mizuho Bank. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Escrow Account was moved from Mizuho Bank to Morgan Stanley. Pursuant to the PE Fund LPA it
is permitted for the administrator of the PE Fund to arrange for amounts credited to the Escrow
Account to be invested in money market funds or other liquid assets pending the use of such
amounts to satisfy applicable capital calls.

Repurchase of units

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Series Trust for the Unitholder subject to the
provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Supplemental Trust Deed. The Series Trust classifies
financia instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the issuer to repurchase or
redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as an equity instrument if it
meets the following conditions:

it entitles the Unitholder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets in the event of the
Series Trust’s liquidation;

itisin the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments;

al financia instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features,
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Repurchase of units (continued)
apart from the contractual obligation for the Series Trust to repurchase or redeem the instrument
for cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would
require classification as aliability; and
the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on
profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series Trust over the life of the instrument.

The Series Trust has one class in issue, USD Units. The Series Trust issues units, which are
repurchased at the Unitholder's option and are classified as Equity in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation (“ 1AS 32”), as the above conditions have been met. Should the
Units terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the strict criteria contained in
IAS 32, the Equity Units would be reclassified to a financia liability from the date the instrument
ceases to meet the criteria. The financia liability would be measured at the instrument’s fair value at
the date of reclassification.

The Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Series Trust's total Equity. Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if the holders exercise their right to put the Units back into the
Series Trust. Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total Equity per
unit at the time of issue or repurchase.

The NAV of the Series Trust is calculated by ascertaining the value of the total assets of the Series
Trust and deducting the total liabilities of the Series Trust. Where there is only one class of units of
the Series Trust inissue, the NAV per unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the NAV  of
the Series Trust by the number of units of the Series Trust in issue. Refer to Note 10 for further
discussion.

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table overleaf shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those
whose fair value is based on:

« Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

e Level 2: Vauation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques for which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes
al instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable
data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments

113/203



EDINETO OO
I o o o o o =)
Ooooooooooooooooogno
for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect

differences between the instruments.

114/203



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO000D0O000OO(ELS389)

. . OO0oOdOoOoooooooooooodn
Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Leve 1 Level 2 Levd 3 Totd
2024 Usbh usD uUsD uUsD
Financial assetsat FVTPL
Investment in SPV,
at fair value - - 26,448,983 26,448,983
- - 26,448,983 26,448,983
2023
Financial assetsat FVTPL
Investment in SPV,
at fair value - - 25,968,169 25,968,169
- - 25,968,169 25,968,169

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs at 31 March 2024 and 2023 in
measuring financial instruments categorised aslevel 3 inthefair value hierarchy:

Valuation Unobservable
Description 2024 technique Input Range
Unlisted private NAV of the
equity fund USD26,448,983 NAV Underlying Fund N/A
Vauation Unobservable
Description 2023 technique Input Range
Unlisted private NAV of the
equity fund USD25,968,169 NAV Underlying Fund N/A

The investment in the SPV is valued in accordance with the policies described in Note 6 (iii) and in
accordance with the valuation model stated in Appendix 41 to the Offering Memorandum.

There were no transfers across the three levels during the year ended 31 March 2024 or for the
period ended 31 March 2023.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation from opening balances to the closing balances for fair
value measurementsin Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 2024 2023
Financial assetsat FVTPL usD usD
Opening balance 25,968,169 -
Purchases - 26,100,000
Change in unrealised 480,814 (131,831)
Closing balance 26,448,983 25,968,169

The NAV of the Series Trust is sensitive to the NAV of the PE Fund.
Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL
The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, receivables and fees payables. These are short-term financia assets and financia liabilities
whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financia risks: market risk (including price
risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks
is carried out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which it
is exposed; these methods are explained below.

Market Risk
Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It represents
the potential 1oss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether caused by factors specific to the Strategy or factors affecting all instruments traded
in the market.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk (continued)

The Trustee, and the Administrator as its delegate of a Series Trust must rely on a single source of
information, namely the report prepared by the Liquidity Intermediary or any of its affiliates, which
is based on the PE Fund Financial Statements, for pricing Investments of a Series Trust related to the
Private Equity Portion including in connection with the calculation of the NAV of a Series Trust.

The PE Fund will invest in illiquid securities, which may ultimately negatively impact existing
Unitholders because the PE Fund GP may be unable to sell such illiquid securities at an
advantageous time or price.

When a private equity interest held by the PE Fund is sold, the discrepancy may be realized between
itsfair value and its sale price mainly, but not limited to, due to a discount associated with its limited
liquidity and similar factors. The NAV per Unit may drop materially due to the discrepancy
described above.

Depending on the market size and environment of the relevant investments of the PE Fund, when
the PE Fund GP liquidates a private equity interest held by the PE Fund, such liquidation may
negatively impact the market prices of such investments, and the PE Fund GP may end up
liquidating the investments at less favourable prices than originally expected. This may cause the
NAV per Unit to drop.

In addition, where private equity interests held by the PE Fund have unrealised gains, Unitholders
submitting repurchase requests may not benefit from those unrealised gains because such unrealised
gains may not be reflected in the prevailing NAV per Unit.

On the other hand, where private equity interests held by the PE Fund have unrealised losses, the
NAV per Unit may drop materially after the relevant private equity interests are sold, and
Unitholders remaining after submission of repurchase requests may suffer from losses in the future
from those unrealised losses because such unrealised losses may not have been reflected in the
prevailing NAV per Unit at the time of the relevant repurchase.

As at 31 March 2024, if the price of the investment in SPV had increased by 5% with al other
variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of USD1,322,449 (2023:
USD1,298,408). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, would result in an equal
but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk (continued)

The table below sets out the concentration of investments held by the Series Trust as at 31 March
2024 and 2023.

2024 2023

% of net assets % of net assets

Investment in SPV - Cayman Islands 94.37% 87.16%
94.37% 87.16%

The Manager monitors the concentration risk for investment in the SPV on counterparties.

The exposure to the SPV exceeded 5% of the equity unitsat 31 March 2024 and 2023.

2024 2023

% of net assets % of net assets

VAULT Cayman Il Investments 0% 07-Jun-32 94.37% 87.16%
94.37% 87.16%

Currency Risk
Currency risk represents the potential losses that the Series Trust might suffer due to adverse

movements in non-base currency exposures. Since the investment in the SPV, at fair value is
denominated in the base currency of the Series Trust, the statement of financial position and
statement of comprehensive income will not be significantly affected by currency movements and
asaresult, asensitivity analysis has not been performed.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to adverse
movements in relevant interest rates.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash. As aresult, the Series Trust is
not subject to any significant risk due to fluctuationsin the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

An increase in interest rates of 1% on cash at the statement of financial position date would have
increased the total equity by USD37,423 (2023: USD40,623). A decrease in interest rates of 1%
would have had an equal but opposite effect.

The above percentage change is based on reasonable estimates of changes in market interest rates.
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The table below summarises the Series Trust’s exposure to interest rate risks as at 31 March 2024
and 2023. It includes the Series Trust’s assets at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual

re-pricing or maturity dates:

Interest Non-interest

bearing bearing Total
2024 UsD usb UsD
Assets
Cash 3,742,346 - 3,742,346
Investment in SPV - 26,448,983 26,448,983
Receivables - 14,755 14,755
Total assets 3,742,346 26,463,738 30,206,084
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 1,942,400 1,942,400
Fees payables - 237,016 237,016
Tota liabilities - 2,179,416 2,179,416
Tota interest sensitivity gap 3,742,346
2023
Assets
Cash 4,062,289 - 4,062,289
Investment in SPV - 25,968,169 25,968,169
Receivables - 14,628 14,628
Tota assets 4,062,289 25,982,797 30,045,086
Liabilities
Fees payables - 250,495 250,495
Total liabilities - 250,495 250,495
Tota interest sensitivity gap 4,062,289
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time
or at areasonable price.

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable
to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. The Series Trust’s investments in
private equities are difficult to purchase or sell. The PE Fund in which the Series Trust will be
exposed to, will likely beilliquid. The Private Equity Portion will invest inilliquid securities, which
may reduce the return and original investment principal of the Series Trust because it may be unable
to sell such illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price.

A secondary market has not been established for the SPV Notes in which the Series Trust invests
and will not be established in the future. When selling SPV Notes in response to a cancellation, the
selling price will be determined based on the valuation of the SPV Notes that is reflected to the
valuation of the PE Fund in which the SPV Notes are invested, but supply and demand factors may
force asale at a price that deviates significantly downward. In such a case, the repurchase price of
the Series Trust will be adversely affected.

If a repurchase request is received on a Repurchase Notice Day, the Investment Manager will
endeavour to sell the Cash Portion (to the extent not already held in cash) to generate repurchase
proceeds. If the repurchase requests received exceed the available Cash Portion, the Investment
Manager will endeavour to sell the SPV Notes included in the Private Equity Portion to generate
repurchase proceeds.

In connection with the forgoing, the Investment Manager is expected to seek quotes for the SPV
Notes from several market participants as part of an SPV Note sale. Given the illiquidity of the SPV
Notes, there can be no guarantee that the Investment Manager will be able to obtain any such quotes
from general market participants.

As aresult, Daiwa VC Accelerator LP. (the “Liquidity Provider”) (indirectly on a back-to-back,
principal-to-principal basis through the Liquidity Intermediary has entered into arrangements which
are intended to ensure that the Investment Manager can sell up to a certain amount of SPV Notes
from on or around the Repurchase Day and at a minimum price that is sufficient to provide the
Series Trust with the required repurchase proceeds (the “Liquidity Arrangement”).

For such purposes, the Liquidity Provider and the Liquidity Intermediary will enter into a back-to-
back, principal-to-principal purchase letter (the “Back-to-Back Purchase Letter”) and the Liquidity
Intermediary will enter into a principal-to-principal purchase letter (the “Purchase Letter”) with the
Series Trust and the Investment Manager.
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31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk
The table below analyses the Series Trust's financial assets and liabilities by contractual maturity as

at 31 March 2024 and 2023:

Greater than Lessthan
1 month 1 month Total
2024 UsSD USD UsSD
Assets
Cash - 3,742,346 3,742,346
Investment in SPV 26,448,983 - 26,448,983
Receivables - 14,755 14,755
Total Assets 26,448,983 3,757,101 30,206,084
Liabilities
Payable for Equity Units redeemed - 1,942,400 1,942,400
Fees payables - 237,016 237,016
Total Liabilities - 2,179,416 2,179,416
2023
Assets
Cash - 4,062,289 4,062,289
Investment in SPV 25,968,169 - 25,968,169
Receivables - 14,628 14,628
Total Assets 25,968,169 4,076,917 30,045,086
Liabilities
Fees payables - 250,495 250,495
Tota Liabilities - 250,495 250,495
Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk that a counterparty to afinancia instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The carrying amounts of financial
assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

121/203



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO000D0O000OO(ELS389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with approved brokers and other reputable
financia ingtitutions. The Series Trust’s financial assets are also held in custody with established
and approved counterparties. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery
using approved brokers. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by
the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation. The Series Trust determines
concentration risk in relation to exposure to individual counterparties.

The Investment in SPV of the Series Trust is held by the Custodian with cash being held at the Sub-
Custodian as banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at year end.
The Sub-Custodian has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2023: A+). The Custodian is the London branch
of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited which has a Fitch credit rating of A- (2023: A-).
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Series Trust's rights, with respect to
investments and cash and cash equivalents held by the Custodian, to be delayed or limited. The
Manager monitors the risk by monitoring the credit quality, financial position and rating of the
Custodian. The Manager has considered the credit rating of these parties and have determined them
to be at appropriate levels.

As the SPV Issuer is not expected to have any access to the cash comprising the issuance
proceeds following the SPV Issuer becoming a limited partner in the PE Fund. Asa result, the
SPV Issuer and the holders of the SPV Notes, accordingly, will be exposed to (a) the credit
risk of the Escrow Bank and the sums credited thereto (and, upon an insolvency of such bank,
al such sums so credited may be lost in full), (b) the risk of loss (and potentially complete
loss of their investment) as a result of the actions, omissions, fraud, negligence, wilful default
or similar of the Escrow Bank, the PE Fund, the administrator of the PE Fund and/or any
party purporting to act on behaf of any of them in connection with the operation of such
Escrow Account and (c) the risk of loss (and potentially complete loss of their investment) as
a result of the performance of any investments made by, or on behaf of, the PE Fund as
contemplated in the PE Fund LPA by application of such cash representing the SPV Issuer’s
capital contributions credited to such Escrow Account.

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and receivables has been measured on a 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust considers that
these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

The Series Trust monitors changes in credit risk on these exposures by tracking published external
credit ratings of the counterparties. To determine whether published ratings remain up to date and to
assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not
been reflected in the published ratings, the Series Trust supplements this by reviewing changes in
bond yields, where available, together with available press and regulatory information about
counterparties.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

12-month and lifetime probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by BBH & Co.
for each credit rating and are recalibrated based on current CDS prices. Loss given default
parameters generally reflect an assumed recovery rate of 50%. However, if the asset were credit-
impaired, then the estimate of loss would be based on a specific assessment of expected cash
shortfalls and on the original effective interest rate.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Series Trust held the following financial assets
measured at amortised cost: cash and receivables; of which only receivable is under the scope of
ECL model. As al the receivable have been settled within 1 month after the financial year end, the
probability of default is considered as close to zero. As a result, no loss alowance has been
recognised based on 12-month expected credit loss model as any such impairment would be wholly
insignificant to the Series Trust.

9. CASH
2024 2023
Cash 3,742,346 4,062,289
3,742,346 4,062,289

Asof 31 March 2024 and 2023 there are no cash equivalents held.
10. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS

The Series Trust has one class of units: USD Units.

USD Units 2024 2023
Number of units outstanding as at start of year / period 305,000 -
Number of unitsissued - 305,000
Number of units redeemed (20,000) -
Number of units outstanding as a end of year / period 285,000 305,000

Units were offered to investors during the initial offer period at the Issue Price and were
issued on the initial closing date. The minimum subscription amount is 10,000 Unitsin 5,000
Units increments. There will be no subscription fee payable. Units will not be available for
subscription by investors after the initial closing date.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

10. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS(continued)

Under the terms of the Master Trust Deed, Unitholders will be the only persons recognised by
the Trustee as having any right, title or interest in or to Units registered in their name and the
Trustee will only recognise such Unitholders as absolute owner of the Units and will not be
bound by any notice to the contrary. The Trustee will not be bound to take notice of or to see
to the execution of any trust or, save as provided under the Master Trust Deed or save as by
some court of competent jurisdiction orders, to recognise any trust or equity or other interest
affecting the title to any Units.

Following receipt of confirmation that an investor account is open and the delivery of the
Subscription Form to the Administrator, the subscription monies must be remitted in full by
telegraphic transfer from an account in the name of the applicant for the account of the Series
Trust for a cash settlement date on or before the initial closing date. Payment must be made in
USD.

Applicants should note that subscription forms received by the Administrator prior to receipt of
confirmation that the applicant's investor account has been opened by the Administrator will
not be processed. In such circumstances the applicant will be required to complete and submit
a new subscription form upon the applicant's receipt of confirmation that their investor account
has been opened by the Administrator. Any subscription monies received into the collection
account of the series trust prior to confirmation that an investor account has been opened will
be regjected and the applicant may be subject to additional bank charges a the qualified
institutional applicant's expense.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on the immediately preceding
repurchase notice day in respect of Units for which subscription proceeds have been received
by the Administrator. In order to make a repurchase request, a Unitholder must submit a
completed repurchase notice in such form as the Manager may approve from time to time (the
“Repurchase Notice”) to the Administrator by facsimile, electronic mail (in the form of a
signed PDF file) or other electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator
specifying the number of Units to be repurchased by no later than the repurchase notice
deadline.

The Repurchase Notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with
the Trustee, determines otherwise.

The repurchase price per unit will be calculated as the NAV per Unit as a the relevant
repurchase day (or if that repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately
preceding valuation day) (plus or minus (at the discretion of the Trustee, in consultation with
the Manager) adjustments for differences between the announced value of those investments of
the Series Trust as at the relevant valuation day that are being realised to fund the relevant
repurchase and their subsequent realised value) (the “Repurchase Price’).
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

10. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF EQUITY UNITS(continued)

The minimum number of Units that may be the subject of a repurchase request by a
Unitholder on any repurchase day is 1 Unit and thereafter in 1 Unit increments, unless the
Manager determines otherwise.

11. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust’'s fees payable as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

UsD UsD
Distribution fees 76,689 80,177
Manager Support Service Provider 18,832 20,044
Investment Manager fees 14,379 15,033
Fee Agent fees 14,379 15,033
Agent Member Company fees 942 1,002
Administration fees 16,708 12,016
Custody fees 9,200 9,200
Audit fees 24,104 23,500
Other fees and expenses 61,783 74,490

237,016 250,495

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, a fee on a quarterly basis at the rate of 0.8% per
annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Manager Support Service Provider Fees
The Manager Support Service Provider receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable
quarterly in arrears at the rate of up to 0.20% per annum of the NAV.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in
arrears at the rate of up to 0.15% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at the
rate of 0.15% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also
cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out

of the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Feesfor al
out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

11. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Fee Agent Fees (continued)
The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
quarterly in arrears.

Agent Member Company Fees
The Agent Member Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly
in arrears at the rate of up to 0.01% per annum of the NAV.

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at
the rate of 0.07% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Administrator also receives an upfront fee of USD3,750 which is amortised as part of the
set-up costs of the Series Trust. The Administrator is also entitled to a fee of USD5,000 per
annum for the preparation of the annual financial statements and USD1,000 per annum for the
preparation of annual CIMA filing reports.

In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator's reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses.

Custody Fees

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears at the
rate of 0.025% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day (subject to a minimum
monthly fee of USD1,500).

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between the
relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-pocket expenses
properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

SPV Notes and PE Fund Fees
Investors in the Series Trust will indirectly bear certain fees and expenses payable in respect of the
SPV Notes and the PE Fund.

12. NET GAIN / (LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS

2024 2023*
usD usD
Net gain / (loss) on investments consists of the following;
Movement in unrealised gain/ (loss) on financial assetsat FVTPL 480,814 (131,831)
Net gain / (loss) on investments 480,814 (131,831)

* For the period from 31 May 2022 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Manager,
Investment Manager, Manager Support Service Provider, Distributor, Fee Agent, SPV Issuer, PE
Fund, Agent Member Company, Administrator, Liquidity Intermediary and Custodian are deemed to
be related parties of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is a related party by virtue of its power to create the Trust under the Deed of
Establishment.

The Manager is arelated party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment
and by virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company, UBS AG.

The Investment Manager is arelated parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions.

The Fee Agent is a related party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it
provides calculation agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in
Note 11.

The Manager Support Service Provider, Distributor, Agent Member Company, Administrator,
Liquidity Intermediary and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with the
Investment Manager.

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.
Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and discussed in Note 11. Amounts charged by and payable to related parties as at 31 March
2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 11.

14. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income annually. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is to declare on each Distribution Declaration Day and pay to
Unitholders an annual distribution (an “Annual Distribution”) in respect of each Distribution
Date.

In principle, the amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each Distribution Date shall be
determined by the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account

(i) realised income and capital gainsin the Private Equity Portion (whose value shall be reduced by
the Realised Amount);

(i) interest accrued, distributions and dividend received from the Cash Portion; and
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)

14. DISTRIBUTIONS (continued)

(iii) interest accrued on the dividend or distribution amounts received from (i) and (ii) above, until
paid out on the corresponding Distribution Date (paragraphs (i) and (iii) hereafter referred to as
the “ Generated Income”)

The Manager also takes into account the NAV per Unit for determining the amount of
distribution.

Further, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances
where it deems appropriate, elect that an Annual Distribution is not payable for a relevant
year. Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not
limited to where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust's
investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous
annua period or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it appropriate to
make such an election.

There is no guarantee that any such distributions will be paid and, to the extent that such
distribution is paid, there is no guarantee that any future distributions will be paid or if pad,
will be paid in such amounts.

Any Annua Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding Distribution Date. Distributions will be made to the person
in whose name are registered on the register of Unitholders on the relevant Distribution Record
Day. Such distributions will be rounded naturally to two decimal places with 0.005 being
rounded up.

There were no distributions paid during the year ended 31 March 2024 or for the period from 31
May 2022 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 March 2023. There were no distributions
payable at year end 31 March 2024 or period end 31 March 2023.

15. RECONCILIATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NAV TO DEALING NAV

All fees and expenses relating to the establishment and organisation of the Series Trust including the
fees of the Manager's professional advisers and all fees incurred by the Manager in relation to the
registration of the Series Trust will be borne by the Series Trust. In accordance with IFRS, the
establishment costs of USD179,707 (2023. USD249,000) were fully charged in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they were incurred. For the purpose of calculating the
Dealing NAV used for dealing purposes, these establishment costs relating to the creation of the
Series Trust are to be amortised over the first three years in accordance with the Appendix.
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Notesto the financia statements

31 March 2024
(Continued)
15. RECONCILIATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NAV TO DEALING NAV
(continued)
2024 2023
usD usD
NAV per financial statements 28,026,668 29,794,591
Write-back of deferred organisational expenses incurred 179,707 249,000
Deferred organisational expenses amortised (83,075) (69,293)
NAV per Dedling NAV 28,123,300 29,974,298

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 March 2024, there were no subscriptions into or redemptions from the Series
Trust.

As of 25 July 2024, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require disclosure
in the financial statements.
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l. 28,253,700 4,306,994,028
. 171,939 26,210,381
Ii. 1-11 28,081,761 4,280,783,647
V. 285,000
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1,797,100,625
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13 90,105,963
60,127,097,570
1,862,589,531
19 138,878,788,496
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2023 2022
UsD usD
60,034 9,152 14,396 2,195
60,034 9,152 14,396 2,195
60,034 9,152 14,396 2,195
185,000 28,201 205,000 31,250
(25) 0 58 9
245,009 37,349 219,454 33,454
(115,081) (17,543) (112,703) (17,180)
129,928 19,806 106,751 16,273
129,928 19,806 106,751 16,273
129,928 19,806 106,751 16,273
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

uSsD usD
9 2,249,019 342,840 1,984,033 302,446
10 185,864 28,333 205,864 31,382
2,434,883 371,174 2,189,897 333,828
10 451,584 68,839 336,526 51,300
451,584 68,839 336,526 51,300
11 735,000 112,043 735,000 112,043
1,248,299 190,291 1,118,371 170,484
1,983,299 302,334 1,853,371 282,528
2,434,883 371,174 2,189,897 333,828

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usD usb usD
2023
11 735,000 112,043 1,118,371 170,484 1,853,371 282,528
- 129,928 19,806 129,928 19,806
12 31 735,000 112,043 1,248,299 190,291 1,983,299 302,334
2022
11 735,000 112,043 1,011,620 154,211 1,746,620 266,255
- 106,751 16,273 106,751 16,273

12 31 735,000 112,043 1,118,371 170,484 1,853,371 282,528
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

USD usD
129,928 19,806 106,751 16,273
4 (60,034) 9,152) (14,396) (2,195)
69,894 10,655 92,355 14,079
20,000 3,049 4,999 762
20,000 3,049 4,999 762
115,058 17,539 112,595 17,164
115,058 17,539 112,595 17,164
4 60,034 9,152 14,396 2,195
264,986 40,394 224,345 34,199
264,986 40,394 224,345 34,199
9 1,984,033 302,446 1,759,688 268,247
2,249,019 342,840 1,984,033 302,446
9 2,249,019 342,840 1,984,033 302,446

2,249,019 342,840 1,984,033 302,446
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KY1-1104 309
c/o0 Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
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2023 12
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2023 2022
60,034 14,396
60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022
(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)
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2023

2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022

185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864
2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526
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2023 2022
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
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Uﬂgwmﬁr“}tm
Franoi! Siatements Tor the year ended 51 December 2028

Statement of Income for the year ended 31 Decembear 2023

UsD m'f 2023 2022

e e 0034 12388
- fram financial instruments measwed at amorhised
cost 60,034 14,395

Total interest income 4 60,034 14,256

R R A a AmEssmam amamma

e s vt
S’“'Sm""w“:}fmemsmjaﬂ
Total revenuas 245,009 518,454

‘General, adm nistratve and ofher operating expenses 6 (1i5,081} (112,709
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 129,928 106,751

Profit baefore tax 129,928 106,751

.................................................... e T R S P e P

Incomea bax axpense T — -
Profit after tax 129,928 106,751

Tha accompanying notes fom an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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1188 Maragenan! (Coman) Lindsd
Fruricnl Slalerrmants for the posr anded 37 Cocambar 2073

ok

- - m-'f 2023 2022
BBSBS e eemaeeeseeseseseemmesenetesAeAemansimieneeini oo i
Cashandduefombanks .9 224009 1984033
‘CHhar assets 10 186 B84 D0 AL
Total assets 2,434,883 2,183,857
Ohner Fakilties 10 451,584 536,506
Tatal liabilities 451,584 336,526
Shermemptal. o e L2 e .J86000 735,000
‘Refained earnings 1,242,299 1,118,371
Total shareholders' equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders' aquity 2,434,883 2,180,897
Approved and autharised for issue by the board of directors on 14 June 2024

3

L1 . }
ll‘l'-'-“'k“ Pﬁ,‘?ﬁr‘-“"ﬂi Director

!

X ‘a-tt-ﬂﬁ""#"

The accomparnying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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UES Maragemand (Cayrran) Limited
Firancst! Stalameds fov e yoar anded 37 Deonmber 2008

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retained Total
usp &amings

Balance at 1 January | aes000 | i 18371 Y 86337

Profit for the year — 126 528 195,998
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,298

2022
Balance st 1janvary . 733000 1011620 1746620
Frofit for the year — 106,751 106,751

Balance at 31 December 135,000 1.118,3M 1,853,371

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

] 2023 2092
usn ool
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit befere Lax for ihe peripd 109 808 106,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
_enerated from operating activities
Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:
Interest Income 4 {60,034) (14,396}
o e
changes in operating assets and liabilities 69,894 92,355
MNetdecrenzein operating sssels: | ooz enmre e e senans
Other assets 20,000 4,999
Met decrease in operating assets 20,000 4,999
Netincrease in operating liabifilles: | e ssnnaans s e ncnssnt anen
Other liabiliies 115,052 112,585
Netlncrease in operating abilitles: 115088 112,595
Interast income recaied 4 60,034 14,296
Net cash generated from operating activily 264,986 224,345
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,988 224,345
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year g 1,984,023 1,769,688
Cash and cazh equivalents at the and of yaar 2249019 1,984,033
Cash and due from banks 9 2249019 1,884,033
Cash and eash equivalents at tha end of year 2,249,019 1,984,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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odes ke Fisneial Stafermenis for dho powr ordad 81 Deconbor 20058

MNotes to the Financial Statements
1.  Principal activities

UBS Management (Cayman) Limited {the 'Cempany’) is incorperated in the Cayman lslands with
limited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration ard
management of assels In trusts. The Company's registered office is /o Maples Corporate Servicas
Limitad, P.O. Box 304, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY'1-1104, Cayman |slands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by operation of
Swiss law to all assets and llabifties of Credt Suisse Group AG, and became the direct or indirect
sharehclder of all of the former direct and [ndirect subsidiarias of Credit Svisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upan the completion of the Transaciion, sach cutstanding, registered Credit Suisse share converted
te the right to receive, subject to the payment of cartain feas to the Crecit Suisse depository in the
case of Credit Suisse Amedcan depositon sharss (ADS), the merger considaration consisting of
1/22.48 UBS Group AG sharas. In aggregata, Credit Sulsse shareholders recetved 5.1% of the
outstanding UBS Group AZ shares on the acquisition date, with a purchase price of USD 3.7 billion

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Direclers of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, ard both entifies enterad inlo a definitve merger agreement. The merger is
complated on 371 May 2024,

2. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

Thasze firancial staterments have bean prepased in accordance with afl applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which colective tarm indudes all applicable individual Intemations! Financial Regorting
Standards, Internaticnal Accounting Standards [1A5s5") and Inberpretations issued by Intemational
Accourting Standards Board (IASB™. A summary of the significant accountng policies adopted by
the Company [s sel out below,

(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of tha financial statameants is the historical cost basis.

The preparaticn of finencial sistaments in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of asssts, Babilities, income and expenses. The esfimates and associated
assumplion: are bagsed on historcal experience and various other faciors that are befiaved to be
reasonabls under the circumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carying values of assets and labBlies that are nok readlly apparent from other sources, Adual
results may differ frem these estimates.,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revised 1 the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the penod of the revision and future pencds if the revision affecis both cument and future
pericds.
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
(b} Basis of preparation of the Financlal Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has applied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporing period
commencing 1 Jarueny 2023

. Cefinttian of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to A5 B
. Disclasure of Accounting Policizs ~ Amencments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendmants listed abeve did net have any impact en the amounts recognsed in prior parods
and are not expectsd o significantly affect the cument or future periods.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertble into known amounts of cash and which are subjoct to an
insigrificant risk of changes in value, having bean within thiee months of maturity at acguisition.

(d} Foreign currency

The Cempany's functional and presentation cumency is United States Dollars ("USD". Fereign
currency transactions during the year are translated into USD: at the forelgn exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Maonetary assets and Jabilties denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of he reporting peried. Exchange gains and
losses arae recognised in the prefil or loss,

Man-maonetary assets and Aabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign curency
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates rullng at the transaction dates. Mon-
monatary assats and fiabites denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined, Foreign
currgncy differences aiising on relranslation are recognised in profit or loss,

(e} Other assets

Other assets are infially recegnised at far value and thereafber stated at amoriised cost less
Expected Credt Loss {ECL) {refer to Mote G(g)), except whenz the receivables are inferest-free
lzans made to related parties without any fived repayment terms or the effect of discourting would ke
immaterial, In such cases, the recelvables are slaled at cost less impairment for bad and deoubtful
debts.

{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recegnised for labiltles of uncertain timing or amount when the Comparny hes a lagal
or constructive cbligation asising as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that 2n sutflow of economic
banefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the time
valus of manay Is malarial, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
seifle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an cutflow of ecancmic banefits will be required, or the amount canno

be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabikty, unless the probability of
cutflow of economic benefils is remote. Possible cbligations, whose existence will only be confimed
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one or more fulure events are also disclozed as contingent
liabilities unlass the probakilfty of cutiow of economic bansfits is remaobe.

{g) Impairment

The carmying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of sach reporting period to
determine whether thers is any objective evidence of impaiment. f any such objective evidence
enists, the assel's recoverable amount is estmated at fhe end of each reporting pericd. An
impaimnent loss is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset excesds its recoverable
amount. Impairmert kosses are recegnised in the preft or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impaimiant requirements apply primarily te financial assets measured at armertised
cost. The impairment reguirernents are tased on 2 forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reascnable and supporlable forecasts of futuwe economic conditions avadable at the
raparting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economiz factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on 2 probability-weighted basis.

{h) Revenue recognition

Proviced that it s probable that the eccnomizc benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
cosls, if appficable, can be measured reliably, service fee incoma is recognised in profit or less when
thae investment managemant sarvica is providad,

(i) Expensas
All expenses are recognisad in prefit and less en an accrus! basis.
(i) Related parties

Faor the purpcses of these financial statements, a party iz considered 12 be related to the Compary if:
() A person, or & close member of that person's family, is related o the Company if that person:
1 has control or Jeint contral avar the Company; :
(i}  has significant influense over the Company, or
(i) is a member of the kay management perscnnél of the Company or the Compzany's
parent.

(b}  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

{3  The entity and the Company sre members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidlary and felow subsidiary is related te tha ethars),

() One entity is an associate or jeint venture of the other entity (or 2n associate o joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member).

(i) Both entitias are jeint veniures of the same third party,

(¥} One entity s a joint venture of a third party and the other enfily is an associate of the
third party.

() The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the banefit of employess of ether the
Compariy or an entity related to the Cempany.

{v) The entity is contrelled or jointly controlled by a persen identified in (2).

(vid A person identfied in (2} has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the
wey management perscnrel of the entity (or of a parant of fhe entity).
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2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(i) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a persen are those family membars who may be expected to
influence, ar be influsnced by, that persen in their deslings with the antity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

Tha IASE has issued a numbar of amendmants to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the cumant sccounting pered of the Company. The adaption of these amandments kad no
riaterial impagst to the Cempany’s fnandal position, result of aperalions or cash Aows.

Tha Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet sffective for the
current accounting pericd (Note 15).

4, Total Interest Income

usD 2023 2022
Total interest income

Inferest income on cash and duefrom banks 60084 14,306
Total interest income 60,044 14,396

All the above inlerast income on financial instrumants measured at amortised cost.
6. Service Fee Income

The principal actvities of the Company are tha creafion of trusts and the administrafion and
management of assels in trusts.

Revenus represents investment management fee income camed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

usD 2023 2022
Jotalservice feeiNCOme e aesna s e

Samvice fes incoma 135,01’.‘!’.{ m:ﬁbi‘ﬂ
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usp 2023 2022
[General administrative and other operatingexpenses =
Audioroamunentlion st e OO (B8
Directars' ramunaration {108,843) (106,175}
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {115,081) {112,708)

All of the above spanditures are payshie lo the Company's immedate holding company and the
immediate helding company setfles such sxpendiures on behalf of the Company
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7. Taxation

Thars are no {axes on income of gains in the Cayman islands and the Company has receved an
undertzking from the Geverncr in Council of the Cayman lslands sxempting i from all local income,
profits and capital taves until 10 Octobar 2038, Aceardingly, no provision for income taxes Is includad
in these financial statements.

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsered uncensolidated sinciurad antiliss

The Company considers fself the sponsor of a structured entity when aither its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there (s a general expectation from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured enity or the Company was involved in the
dasign or et up of the structured entity and has a form of iwolvement with the struciureg entity,

Tha balow unconsolidated structured anlitias are- sponscrad by the Company whera a ficed annual

management fee of USD 5000 (2022 USD 5,000Y is recalved but no Interest 5 hald by the
Company as at 31 Decamber 2023
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

mE s ma LA AR AL

“Austraian Fiigh Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Instititional |mem:§ Oniy)

US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualiied institutional Investors Orkd

gy Pk S el
F‘nrn: ipal / CS Canadian Equity Inmmuf_und ﬂ:gr_ﬂyajriged Inshmna.t Ir"uesturs Clnlf,l

Elaha.l REIT Tn_Ela FF'EITIJIJI'H Fun:i [For Ckuaif'ed Insh‘mtunal Im"astars
Us H@- Div Eqmt:.r F’rumn.lrn Fund{ nr C!uai'md Inr.ltl.rtﬂna.l Im’eﬂms 'Dl'li'_f]

US Small Cap Eg th}l Premum Fhl'ld I{Fcrouallﬁad institutional I"westu g Onk}

‘Daiwa 2 Emerging Local Market Eord Eu |:I t_'Fnr “Guafed Inihtutcna.] Inverstg;_s_gplg‘
US Frei'arred REIT Income Fund {Fur Cual |:|5tthhma Ir'\rﬂstu'? G_nIJ.r}

“Jasan Eg_u.ty F"amuum Fund {Fur Clualified institutional investers Cinly)

NE/MYAM US RETT Income Fund {For Qualfied insitutional investors Gnly) """ """~
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund {For Quafied instiutional Investors Onb) "™ "
Eq;g.nglL "v'antu'E-s lll 1 P. Fund T S B,

E’azi] Eq_ud}r_.-:_a"_l_a Fund [Fm Guakﬁed -nsﬁtl..hmal Iwest-::rs Dn'}a} B ——
‘Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qzaified Institutional Investors Oniy} N
_‘\{1_.-:9:&3 JEFI_E!‘I _Eq.dl‘}f Aetive Fund {Fnr {'.‘.JaJrhed Inslrtulxunal Imrestor" Gnlﬁ

_.ﬂ-.MP Australia REIT Fund (Fﬂ' Duahfaed instituticnal investers Dﬂ!‘f} e
- RE’T anrd ?Eal Esta‘te Enurt}' Fl..nd I[F-:Jl 'Dualmﬂd Inshmtmna Imastnfs s Onlyd)

Dap.-.:llaﬁ.mﬂdca"l H|,g'n ‘Dividend Equ[*}‘ ‘Clsattre Income Fund (Fur Cualifiad Institutional investers
Only

Daivwa Amaﬂmn er' Gl.m‘hﬂ Incoma Fund {FDI ﬂuaﬁfﬁd nnsh‘l..tlnnal I"westms Dnh‘.r}
Shnsal Word” me Stable T}I‘PB {Faf Qualified 1nslii1.rlacna Im"ab tors Or 1I,r,.

s RI:IT Tr!PIa I’:nglna Pius Fund {Fm’ Gua*’lflau lrvstduhnnnl Trwestors Dnl:,'}

US Mun'dipal Bond Fund
s iats CAT Bond B
Gibal High Dividend Equify Premium Fund (For Qualifed Instiubionsl Investors Ol 77
Medzter's Calection
EfS‘M_D‘beaI .ﬂ.dvaqlaga_
FIMCE Short Term income St
I-:i‘u'I-IZG Shurt Tmm Stratag}
Dal'.«ra ..I REIT E:wa'ad C&I Fund 1Fe F’U-’ Duaﬂn‘:ed Iml:tutm:nul Imm-*.ors Gnl].r]

Fore! gn | Dercminatec Man AHL Smaft Lihramga Smaiagy FL.ﬂd

mErsrasTETEREImEETEAE T e T T T T T R T e Y

SEI _p‘dﬁt Asia H|—Te~d'| '\I"entu:f_z Fund
MD Shme B-m‘u:l Furld

rategy Fund

A R S SR R RS SRS R
O T T T T T

B

'US Dyramic Growth Fund

Pramium Carry Strategy Fund
* The funds were terminated during 2023.

Tha Compeny has nol provided financial or other support to unconsolidated structured enfities that it
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currently have the infention to provide financial or other suppot to
unconsolidated structured entiies that it is not confractually required to provide,
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Cash and cash egiivalents comprise:
UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks 2,245,018 1,984,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
usD 2023 2022
Cther assels
Interast and fees recalvabla 185 864 205 864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
uso 2023 2022
Other liabilities
Interest and fees payable 451,584 336 b6
Total other liabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital
{m) Authorised and issued share capital
2023 _ 2022

Mo. of UsD No. of ush

shares sharas
Authaorised:
Crdinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up: _ _ _ _
Crdinary shares 735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

The holdars of ardinary shares are enlitled to receve dividends as declared from time to iime and are
antitled to cna vote per share at general mestings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's rasidual assets
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11.  Share Capital {continued)
(b} Capital management

The Company's primary objectves when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s akility to
continue as a going concem so thet it can contnue to provide returns to sharsholders, by priong
senvices commensurately with the level of rsk and by securing access to finance &t a reasenable
cost. Az the Company is part ef a larger greup, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
chjectives, The Company defines *capital® as including all companents of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regulary reviewsd and managed with due regard to the capital
menagement prachces of the group to which the Company belongs, Adjustments are made lo the
eapital strueture i light of changes in ecoromic condiions affecting the Campany or the group,
the aextent that these do not condlict with the directors' fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, Buidity, nterest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's busness. These risks ara managed by the Company's fnanclal management palicias and
practices descrbed balow,

(&) Credit risk

The Carmpary's credit risk is primarily atirbulabla to amounts dus from group companies and cash at
bank, Cradit risk Is defined as risk that one party te a fnandal instrument will cause a financal loss to
another party by failing to discharge an obligaticn. Management regulary montors its risk exposure to
ensure that #s credit risk Is kept to & minimal level. The maximum exposure o credit rsk is
represented by the carmying amount of sach financial asset in the statement of finandgal pesition after
deducting any impairmant allowance.

{b) Liguidity risk

The Company's palicy is to regulady menitor its Buidiby requirements to satisfy its contracteal and
reascnably foresseable obligations as they fall dus.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial liabilties, which incledes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand o undated and are expected to be seitled between three lo twelve
marths,

{c) Interest rate risk

The Company Is exposed 10 interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest on cash

and depesits. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no dirsct
material effect on tha carrying value of the recognised assets or [abiities of the Cempany.

16
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values {continued)
(d) Forelgn currency risk
The Company is expased 1o foreign cumency risk primardly through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (HKD). As the HKD is pegged fo the USD,
the Compary conslders that the risk of mevemants in sxchange rates betwsen USD and HKD to be
Insignificant.

{e) Fair values

The camying amounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
nok materially diffarant from their fair value as al 31 December 2023 and 20232,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

in addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhers In the financal stetamants, tha
Company entered into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2003 31 December 2022

Parent Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Tatal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companes
Assats
Othar assets - 185,884 185,664 205,054 205,634
Taotal assets = 185,864 185,284 - 205,864 205864
Liabilides and
Equiby
bt IO, L TR, T e
‘Share capital 735,020 - T35,000 735,000 25,
Total liabilities and
sharaholders’
equity 1,186,584 — 1,186,584 1,001,526 — 1,071,628
16
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13.  Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

{b} Related party revenues and expenses

31 Dasembear 2023 31 Decembar 2022
Parant Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
UsD Companias Companies
Ravanues
gy o TSRO R o 5y SIS - L SRS PO o R st
Total revenues - 185,000 185,000 — 205,000 206,000

() Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management personne (I.ISI-J} 2023 2022
Director's Fee 108,643 106,175
Total Remuneration of key management personnal 108,643 106,175

14. Parent and Ulimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immediate parent of he Company s Credit Sulsse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which 1z Incorporated in Hong Kong and tha ultimate controling party of the Company is UBS Group
AG, which is incorporated In Swittedand, UBS Greup AG produces financial statements available for
public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Certain rew accounting standards, amendments fo aceounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatery for 31 Cecember 2023 reporting peniads and have not been
early adopled by the Company. Thesa standards, amandments or interpratations are not expectad o
have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

16. Subsequent Events

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and both enfities entered into a definitve merger agreement. The merger is
completad on 31 May 2024,

Effectire 1 March 2024, the name of Credt Suisse Manzgement {Cayman) Limited has been
changed ta UBS Management (Cayman} Limited

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The finandal slatements were approved for Beua by the board of directors of the Compary on 14
June 2024,
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KPMG LLP
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SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-
1106 Cayman Islands
Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164
Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Wil Ventures Ill, LP. Fund (the "Series Trust”), a
series trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) IlI)
(the "Trust") which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, the statements of

comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at March 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS Accounting Standards").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting
process.
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Independent auditors’ report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

July 25, 2024
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Company””), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““I1SAs””).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor™s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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